
The Town invites and encourages people with disabilities to attend and voice their comments in relation 
to accessibility related reports.  For those who are unable to attend, the Town encourages the use of the 

Customer Feedback Form found on the Accessibility Page on the Town’s website. 
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COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING AGENDA 

On June 19, 2018 
At Emergency Services Building – 340 Herbert Street 

 

1 CALL MEETING TO ORDER (Immediately following the Regular Council Meeting) 

2 DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & GENERAL NATURE THEREOF 

3 APPROVAL OF MINUTES  (ADOPTION) – June 5, 2018 

4 PUBLIC QUESTION/COMMENT (Only Addressing Reports On The Agenda) 

5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS – NONE  

6 DISCLOSURE OF ADDITIONAL ITEMS 

7 

DELEGATIONS  

Howard Allan, Allan and Partners LLP – 2017 Audited Financial Statements  
(+Ref. Report COW-FIN-2018-26) 
 

8 PRESENTATIONS BY STAFF (OTHERS) – NONE 

9 
CORRESPONDENCE  

1000 Islands Writers Festival – Thank You 

10 STAFF REPORTS 

 Accounts Payable from May 31 to June 13, 2018 

 

Melanie Kirkby, Treasurer 

COW-FIN-2018-25 – Capital Matters Pending 

COW-FIN-2018-26 – Management Letter 

 
Terry Gilmer, Manager of Parks and Recreation 

COW-RECM-2018-10 – Canada 150 Rink Application 
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The Corporation of the Town of  


 


COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES 
On June 5, 2018 


At Emergency Services Building – 340 Herbert Street 
 


COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT 


CHAIR: Erika Demchuk Shellee Fournier, CAO 


MEMBERS: Joe Jansen Penny Kelly, Clerk/CEMC 


 


Anne Warren Melanie Kirkby, Treasurer 


Brian Brooks Paul McMunn, Manager of Public Works 


Jeff Girling Steve Tiernan, Fire Chief 


Jan Hayes Sherri Ogilvie, Supervisor of Public Utilities 


Dwayne Fletcher Terry Gilmer, Manager of Parks & Recreation 


 Shellee Hirstwood, Manager of Economic Development 


REGRETS:  Brenda Guy, Community Development Manager 


1 CALL MEETING TO ORDER  


 Councillor Girling chaired the meeting.  The meeting was called to order at 6:29 PM. 


2 DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & GENERAL NATURE THEREOF – NONE  


3 APPROVAL OF MINUTES  - May 15, 2018 (ADOPTION)  


 


Moved by: Councillor Brooks 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE HEREBY ADOPT THE MINUTES FROM THE 
MAY 15, 2018 MEETING. 


CARRIED - UNANIMOUS 


4 PUBLIC QUESTION/COMMENT (Only addressing Reports on Agenda)  


 Members of the public spoke to items on the Agenda. 


5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 


 


COW-CSC-2018-03 – Managing Council Member(s) Meeting Attendance  
 
Moved By:  Councillor Brooks 
 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE APPROVE OPTION #1, PASS BY-LAW NO. 2018-055, BEING A BY-LAW TO 
AMEND THE COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT POLICY TO INSERT A NEW SECTION, AS FOLLOWS: 
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“COUNCIL ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL/COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
IN ORDER TO EFFECTIVELY MANAGE COUNCIL MEMBER(S) PARTICIPATION IN ACTIVITIES OF THE AGENCIES, 
BOARDS AND COMMITTEES TO WHICH THEY ARE APPOINTED, COUNCIL MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE SHALL BE 
RECORDED IN THE MINUTES.  THE RECORD SHALL SHOW THOSE MEMBERS PRESENT, ABSENT, AND/OR 
ABSENT ON COUNCIL BUSINESS. 


 
A. MEMBERS MAY BE ABSENT FOR UP TO FOUR (4) REGULARLY SCHEDULED COMMITTEE OF THE 


WHOLE (COW) / COUNCIL MEETINGS PER CALENDAR YEAR WITHOUT DEDUCTION, BUT FOR THE 
FIFTH (5TH) MEETING AND FOR EACH MEETING THEREAFTER, THERE SHALL BE A DEDUCTION 
FROM THE ANNUAL ALLOWANCE IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE-HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS 
($150) FOR EACH MEETING MISSED BY A MEMBER.  


 
B. IN ADDITION, MEMBERS MAY BE ABSENT FOR UP TO THREE (3) REGULARLY SCHEDULED 


ADVISORY PANELS / OTHER BOARDS AND BODIES MEETINGS PER CALENDAR YEAR (PER EACH 
AP/OBB) WITHOUT DEDUCTION, BUT FOR THE FOURTH MEETING AND FOR EACH MEETING 
THEREAFTER, THERE SHALL BE DEDUCTED FROM THE ANNUAL ALLOWANCE, THE SUM OF 
SEVENTY-FIVE ($75) FOR EACH MEETING MISSED BY A MEMBER.  


 
C. IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT ATTENDANCE SHALL BE RECORDED FOR SPECIAL MEETINGS CALLED IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISION OF THE PROCEDURE BY-LAW OF THE TOWN OF 
GANANOQUE, BUT SUCH ATTENDANCE WILL NOT RESULT IN A REDUCTION OF A COUNCIL 
MEMBER’S ALLOWANCE. 


 
D. BY WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE MAYOR (OR DESIGNATE), A COUNCIL MEMBER MAY BE 


RECORDED AS “ABSENT ON COUNCIL BUSINESS”.  WHEN A MEMBER IS RECORDED IN SUCH A 
MANNER, NO DEDUCTION FROM COUNCIL COMPENSATION WILL OCCUR.  WHERE THE COUNCIL 
MEMBER IS THE MAYOR, THE DEPUTY MAYOR SHALL PROVIDE SUCH WRITTEN APPROVAL. 


 
E. PURSUANT TO THE ABOVE, IF A COUNCIL MEMBER IS AWAY DUE TO SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, 


ACCOMMODATIONS MAY BE GRANTED IN THE SAME FORM AS PRESCRIBED IN “D” ABOVE.” 
 


THIS BY-LAW SHALL COME INTO FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON JANUARY 1, 2019.”, 
 
WITH REGARDS TO MANAGING COUNCIL MEMBER(S) MEETING ATTENDANCE, AS PRESENTED IN 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REPORT CSC-2018-03. 


CARRIED – UNANIMOUS 


6 DISCLOSURE OF ADDITIONAL ITEMS – NONE 


7 DELEGATIONS – NONE  


8 PRESENTATIONS BY STAFF – NONE 


9 


CORRESPONDENCE 


Municipality of East Ferris – Resolution No. 2018-165 – Bill 16, Respecting Municipal Authority Over 
Landfilling Sites Act – Request for Support  


Town of Oakville – CN Intermodal Update 
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Brett Gibson – Lou Jeffries 13th Annual Scholarship Game – Request for Council Grant 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Brooks 
 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE APPROVE A COUNCIL GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $500.00,  
REGARDING THE ICE RENTAL FEE FOR THE LOU JEFFRIES 13TH ANNUAL SCHOLARSHIP GAME BEING 
HELD ON SEPTEMBER 15, 2018, AS REQUESTED BY BRETT GIBSON, EVENT COORDINATOR’S 
CORRESPONDENCE DATED MAY 25, 2018. 


CARRIED – 6 Ayes, 1 Nay 


Arthur Child Heritage Museum – Spring Newsletter 2018 


City of Quinte West – Cannabis Grace Period Request  


Ontario Good Roads Association (OGRA) – Invitation to join the “preferred Autonomous Vehicles Test 
Corridor 


Downtown Gananoque BIA – Letter of Support for Gananoque Farmers’ Market (+Reference Report 
COW-RECM-2018-08) 


10 STAFF REPORTS 


 


Accounts Payable from May 9, 2018 to May 30, 2018 
 
Moved by: Councillor Warren 
 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE RECEIVE THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR CHEQUES 
ISSUED FROM MAY 9, TO MAY 30, 2018 TOTALLING $797,057.80, AS PRESENTED. 


CARRIED – UNANIMOUS 


COW-RECM-2018-08 – Farmers Market – Town Park Rental Fee  
 
Moved by:  Councillor Fletcher 
 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE PASS BY-LAW 2018-056, BEING A BY-LAW TO AMEND THE GENERAL 
FEES & RATES SCHEDULE “H” FOR COMMUNITY RECREATIONAL SERVICES, SPECIFICALLY FEES 
ASSOCIATED WITH THE OPERATION OF THE FARMERS MARKET AT TOWN HALL PARK WITH OPTION 
#1 (AMEND THE FEES & RATES BY-LAW TO INCLUDE A RATE OF $0.00 FOR THE FARMERS MARKET), 
AS PRESENTED IN COW REPORT RECM-2018-08. 


CARRIED – UNANIMOUS 


COW-RECM-2018-09 – Non-Contributing User Fees – Lou Jeffries Recreation Centre 
 
Moved by: Councillor Fletcher 
 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE APPROVE OPTION #2 (CHARGE NON-RESIDENTS FULL PRIME/NON-
PRIME RENTAL FEES) REGARDING NON-CONTRIBUTING USER FEES AT THE LOU JEFFRIES 
RECREATION CENTRE, AS PRESENTED IN COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REPORT RECM-2018-09. 


CARRIED – 6 Ayes, 1 Nay 
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COW-FIN-2018-24 – Establish an Investment Policy 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Warren 
 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE PASS BY-LAW NO. 2018-057 BEING A BY-LAW TO ESTABLISH AN 
INVESTMENT POLICY, AS PRESENTED IN COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REPORT FIN-2018-24. 


CARRIED – UNANIMOUS 


 


COW-CSC-2018-04 – Council and Committee of the Whole Meetings – August 2018 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Warren 
 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE PROVIDE AN EXEMPTION TO THE PROCEDURAL BY-LAW, SPECIFICALLY 
ITEM 5.3.4., “TIME OF MEETING – COUNCIL”,  TO CANCEL THE AUGUST 21, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL 
AND COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETINGS, AS PRESENTED IN COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
REPORT CSC-2018-04. 


CARRIED – UNANIMOUS 


 


COW-LIB-2018-02 – Gananoque Public Library Quarterly Report  
 
Moved by:  Councillor Fletcher 
 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF GANANOQUE RECEIVE THE GANANOQUE PUBLIC LIBRARY QUARTERLY REPORT, AS PRESENTED 
IN COW REPORT LIB-2018-02. 
 


 CARRIED – UNANIMOUS 


12 DISCUSSION OF ADDITIONAL ITEMS – NONE 


13 NEXT MEETING –  June 19, 2018 


14 QUESTIONS FROM THE MEDIA – NONE 


15 ADJOURNMENT 


 


Moved by: Councillor Fletcher 
Be it resolved that the Committee of the Whole hereby adjourn the June 5, 2018 meeting at  
7:25 PM. 


 
CARRIED - UNANIMOUS 


 
________________________________ 
Jeff Girling, Chair 


 
______________________________ 
Penny Kelly, Clerk 


 





clerk
File Attachment
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Town of Gananoque
Five Year Financial Review


(not subject to audit)


December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 


Population (Statistics Canada) 5,159 5,159 5,194 5,194 5,194 


Number of Households (MPAC) 2,528 2,528 2,528 2,528 2,527 


Taxable Assessment (000's)
Residential and farm
Commercial and industrial


$ 
429,286 


82,852 


$ 
434,800 


85,707 


$ 
425,138 


84,541 


$ 
417,283 


82,459 


$ 
407,625 


80,378 


Total 512,138 520,507 509,679 499,742 488,003 


Commercial, industrial as % of assessment 16.2% 16.5% 16.6% 16.5% 16.5%


Rates of Taxation
Residential
< for general municipal purposes
< for school board purposes


1.285920 
0.179000 


1.240900 
0.188000 


1.233900 
0.195000 


1.195050 
0.203000 


1.166170 
0.212000 


Total 1.464920 1.428900 1.428900 1.398050 1.378170 


Multi-Residential (total)
Commercial (total)
Industrial (total)


2.554740 
3.765740 
3.825540 


2.480540 
3.692254 
3.850240 


2.474630 
3.709630 
3.867010 


2.410870 
3.667870 
3.823430 


2.366490 
3.644490 
3.798720 


Tax Arrears < percentage of current levy (‹10%)** 8.66% 9.20% 10.70% 11.70% 12.30%


Taxes Transferred (000's)
< School Boards 1,896 2,001 2,022 2,038 2,058 


Revenues (000's)
< Taxation and payments in lieu
< Government transfers
< Fees and service charges
< Other
< Revenues related to capital assets


$ 
7,935 
1,997 
4,774 
2,189 


33 


$ 
7,861 
2,097 


   4,434 
2,275 


    1,043 


$ 
7,613 
2,038 


   4,195 
2,205 


   1,313 


$ 
7,159 
2,223 
3,937 
2,181 


    279 


$ 
6,780 
2,195 
3,682 
2,260 


    1,373 


Total 16,928 17,710 17,364 15,779 16,290 


Expenditures (000's)
< Operations
< Amortization


14,970 
2,623 


15,077 
2,541 


14,518 
2,361 


14,894 
2,240 


14,032 
2,228 


Net Financial Assets (Net Debt)
< % of Operating Revenue (>(20%)) **
< % of Taxation and User Charges (>(50%)) **


11.38%
15.13%


(7.81%)
(10.59%)


(5.27%)
(7.17%)


(15.32%)
(21.40%)


(10.79%)
(15.36%)


** Represents the Provincial Low Risk Indicator.
(Note:  All dollar amounts are in thousands of dollars.)
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Town of Gananoque
Five Year Financial Review


(not subject to audit)


December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 


$ $ $ $ $ 


Long Term Debt
< Net long term debt (000's)


< Long term debt charges (000's)


< Annual repayment limit (000's) (Total)


< Long term debt per household


8,512 


570 


3,489 


3,367 


5,259 


   572 


    3,312 


   2,080 


5,562 


   
574 


   
3,176 


   
2,200 


5,865 


603 


    
3,375 


    
2,320 


6,154 


827 


    
3,027 


    
2,435 


< Debt charges
< rate supported < water & sewer (000's)


    
< tax supported (000's)


54 


516 


30 


   
542 


36 


   
538 


37 


    
566 


39 


    
788 


Municipal Equity (000's)
< Surplus and Reserves


< Invested in capital assets


< Asset consumption ratio


    
< Reserves as % of operating expenses (>20%) **


10,516 


51,940 


47.06%


73.82%


7,709 


   
52,789 


   
45.30%


   
54.28%


7,655 


   
50,212 


   
45.33%


   
55.87%


6,454 


   
48,566 


    
44.52%


    
46.29%


4,155 


    
49,980 


44.27%


    
43.94%


Financial Indicators
< Sustainability


< financial assets to liabilities


< financial assets to liabilities
excluding long term debt


< long term debt to tangible capital assets


< capital reserve to accumulated amortization


1.167 


4.510 


14.07%


17.70%


0.838 


   
2.422 


   
8.51%


     
13.30%


0.895 


   
2.917 


   
9.48%


   
14.40%


0.708 


    
1.763 


    
10.14%


    
12.91%


0.781 


    
2.289 


    
10.96%


    
11.77%


< Flexibility
< Debt charges to total operating revenue (<5%) **


< Total operating revenue to taxable assessment


< Working capital to operating expenses (>10%) **


3.37%


3.30%


69.71%


3.43%


   
3.20%


   
26.25%


3.58%


   
3.15%


   
32.48%


3.89%


   
3.10%


    
20.18%


5.55%


   
3.06%


    
29.25%


< Vulnerability
< Operating government transfers


< to operating revenue


< Total government transfers
< to total revenues


11.23%


11.21%


11.49%


   
16.38%


   


11.63%


   


18.31%


    


13.22%


   
    


19.49%
    


13.45%


   
    


20.55%
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Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements


The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the Town of
Gananoque are the responsibility of the Town’s management and have been prepared in
compliance with legislation, and in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards.  A summary of significant accounting policies are described in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.  The preparation of consolidated financial statements
necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s judgement, particularly when
transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future
periods.


The Town’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in
compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is
available on a timely basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements.  These systems
are monitored and evaluated by management.


Management meets with the external auditors to review the consolidated financial statements and
discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to Council approval of
the consolidated financial statements.


The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Allan and Partners LLP, independent
external auditors appointed by the Town.  The accompanying Auditor’s Report outlines their
responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the Town’s consolidated
financial statements.


                                                                                                                                             
Shellee Fournier, CAO Melanie Kirkby, Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT


To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers 
of the Corporation of the Town of Gananoque:


We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the Town of
Gananoque which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and
the consolidated statement of operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 


Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements


The Corporation of the Town of Gananoque’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian Public Sector
Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.  


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.


Opinion


In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Corporation of the Town of Gananoque as at December 31, 2017 and
its consolidated results of operations, changes in net financial assets and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.


Allan and Partners LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants


Perth, Ontario,
June 19, 2018.
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Town of Gananoque
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position


December 31 2017 2016 


$ $ 


ASSETS


Financial Assets


Cash and short term deposits


Taxes receivable (net of allowance of $109,243)    
User charges receivable (net of allowance $719)


Accounts receivable (net of allowance $53,968)    


10,894,146 
714,451 
656,416 


1,143,142 


3,811,364 


   775,256 
627,381 


   1,525,982 


13,408,155 6,739,983 


LIABILITIES


Financial Liabilities


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Other current liabilities


Employee future benefit obligations (note 5)    
Deferred revenues (note 6)


Long term liabilities (note 7)    


1,539,752 
277,042 
648,088 
508,127 


8,512,241 


1,984,914 
148,681 


   638,911 
9,501 


   5,259,370 


11,485,250 8,041,377 


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (DEBT) 1,922,905 (1,301,394)


NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS


Tangible capital assets (note 15)


Inventories     
60,507,428 


25,726 


61,781,405 


   18,233 


60,533,154 61,799,638 


Commitments (note 13) Contingent Liabilities (note 11)


MUNICIPAL EQUITY (note 8) 62,456,059 60,498,244 


Approved On Behalf of Council:


Mayor Deputy Mayor


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Consolidated Statement of Operations


For the year ended December 31
(Note 17)


Budget 2017 2016 


$ $ $ 


REVENUES


Taxation < residential


< commercial and industrial    
< other governments


User charges < environmental    
< transportation


< recreation and culture    
< other


Government transfers    
Investment income


Penalties and interest on taxes    
Licenses and permits


Provincial offenses    
Casino revenues


Other    


5,670,561 


   1,922,909 
290,032 


   2,953,410 
65,000 


   1,028,917 
504,010 


   1,976,099 
63,200 


   110,000 
113,600 


   49,395 
1,700,000 


   98,025 


5,670,948 
1,944,282 


319,474 
2,786,178 


96,954 
1,085,366 


805,645 
1,997,081 


104,109 
109,256 


89,333 
51,966 


1,595,708 
238,782 


5,544,634 


   1,966,341 
350,024 


   2,743,899 
89,107 


   1,014,814 
585,788 


   2,097,418 
67,566 


   134,881 
60,653 


   43,537 
1,776,270 


   191,764 


TOTAL REVENUES 16,545,158 16,895,082 16,666,696 


EXPENDITURES


General government
Protection to persons and property


Transportation services    
Environmental services


Health services    
Social and family services


Recreation and cultural services    
Planning and development


Post retirement benefits actuarial valuation    


1,356,412 
4,489,497 


   2,439,733 
3,016,039 


   514,015 
552,385 


   2,349,186 
938,988 


   --- 


1,338,967 
4,779,977 
2,244,634 
2,785,676 


506,505 
450,192 


2,272,455 
529,953 


61,904 


1,476,641 
4,665,632 


   2,314,014 
2,880,032 


   481,274 
530,221 


   2,242,161 
468,437 


   18,707 


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 15,656,255 14,970,263 15,077,119 


NET REVENUES FROM OPERATIONS 888,903 1,924,819 1,589,577 


OTHER


Grants and transfers related to capital


Deferred revenues earned (note 6)    
Government transfers


Other     


--- 
315,828 


   --- 


--- 
9,016 


23,980 


579,564 
406,038 


   56,928 


315,828 32,996 1,042,530 


ANNUAL SURPLUS


MUNICIPAL EQUITY, BEGINNING OF YEAR


1,204,731 


   
60,498,244 


1,957,815 


60,498,244 


2,632,107 


   
57,866,137 


MUNICIPAL EQUITY, END OF YEAR 61,702,975 62,456,059 60,498,244 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets


For the year ended December 31
(Note 17)


Budget 2017 2016 


$ $ $ 


ANNUAL SURPLUS 1,204,731 1,957,815 2,632,107 


Amortization of tangible capital assets


Acquisition of tangible capital assets   
Acquisition of supplies inventories    


2,762,364 


   (6,340,023)


   --- 


2,623,097 
(1,349,120)


(7,493)


2,541,312 
(5,648,711)


   20,538 


(3,577,659) 1,266,484 (3,086,861)


INCREASE (DECREASE) 
IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (2,372,928) 3,224,299 (454,754)


NET DEBT, BEGINNING OF YEAR (1,301,394) (1,301,394) (846,640)


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (DEBT), END OF YEAR (3,674,322) 1,922,905 (1,301,394)


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows


For the year ended December 31 2017 2016 


$ $ 


OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Annual surplus for the year
Amortization


1,957,815 
2,623,097 


2,632,107 


      2,541,312 


4,580,912 5,173,419 


Net Change in Non-Cash Working Capital Balances
Taxes receivable


User charges receivable    
Accounts receivable


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    
Other current liabilities


Employee future benefit obligations    
Deferred revenues


Inventories    


60,805 
(29,035)
382,840 


(445,162)
128,361 


9,177 
498,626 


(7,493)


124,112 


   63,898 
(315,617)


   911,627 
31,080 


   (46,130)
(574,738)


   20,538 


598,119 214,770 


Working Capital from Operations 5,179,031 5,388,189 


CAPITAL ACTIVITIES


Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,349,120) (5,648,711)


Net investment in tangible capital assets (1,349,120) (5,648,711)


FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Debt issued for Town purposes


Debt principal repayments   
3,625,000 
(372,129)


--- 


    (303,030)


Net increase (decrease) in cash from financing activities 3,252,871 (303,030)


NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH


CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR


7,082,782 


3,811,364 


(563,552)


   
4,374,916 


CASH, END OF YEAR 10,894,146 3,811,364 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


1. Status of the Town of Gananoque


The Town of Gananoque (the ‘Town’) was incorporated in 1890.  The Town operates as a single tier
government in the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville, in the Province of Ontario, Canada and
provides municipal services such as police, fire, public works, planning, parks and recreation, library
and other general government operations.


2. Significant Accounting Policies


The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the Town of Gananoque are the
representations of management and have been prepared in all material respects in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.  Significant aspects of the accounting policies by the
Town are as follows:


Reporting Entity


(i) The consolidated financial statements reflect financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and
expenditures, reserves, reserve funds and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of
the Town.  The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations, committees and local boards
accountable for the administration of their financial affairs and resources to the Town and which
are owned or controlled by the Town.  Interdepartmental and inter-organizational transactions
and balances between these organizations are eliminated.  These consolidated financial
statements include:


< Public Library Board
< Business Improvement Area Committee
< Police Commission


(ii) The taxation, other revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities with respect to the operations
of the school boards are not reflected in the municipal fund balances of these consolidated
financial statements.


Basis of Accounting


(i) The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  The
accrual basis of accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable.  Expenditures are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable based on receipt of goods and services and / or
the creation of a legal obligation to pay.  


(ii) Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year, and are not
intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.  The change in non-financial assets during
the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the change in net
financial assets for the year.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued


Taxation and Related Revenues


Property tax billings are prepared by the Town based on assessment rolls issued by the Municipal
Property Assessment Corporation (‘MPAC’).  Tax rates are established by the Town Council,
incorporating amounts to be raised for local services, and amounts the Town is required to collect on
behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect of education taxes.  Taxation revenues are recorded at the
time tax billings are issued.  Adjustments to taxation revenue can occur during the year related to the
issuance of supplementary tax billings and/or assessment appeals.  These adjustments are recorded
when the amount of the adjustments can be quantified.  The Town is entitled to collect interest and
penalties on overdue taxes.  These revenues are recorded in the period in which the interest and
penalties are applied.


Tangible Capital Assets


Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which include all amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost of the tangible capital
assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:


Land 
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Linear Assets


Roads
Bridges
Sidewalks
Traffic Lights
Street Lights
Sanitary Sewer 
Storm Sewer
Water Lines


Construction in Progress


40 years
5 to 15 years
5 to 15 years


60 years
60 years
20 years
15 years
15 years
60 years
60 years
60 years


Amortization is charged from the date of acquisition.  Assets under construction are not amortized until
the asset is available for productive use, at which time they are capitalized.  


The Town has a capitalization threshold of $10,000 for vehicles and equipment and $50,000 for linear
assets and buildings so that individual capital assets of lesser value are expensed.


Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt,
and that fair value is also recorded as revenue.  Similarly, transfers of assets to third parties are
recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of other asset as of the date of transfer.


When tangible capital assets are disposed of, either by way of a sale, destruction or loss, or
abandonment of the asset, the asset’s net book value, historical cost less accumulated amortization,
is written off.  Any resulting gain or loss, equal to the proceeds on disposal less the asset’s net book
value, is reported on the consolidated statement of operations in the year of disposal.  Transfers of
assets to third parties are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the asset as of the
date of transfer.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued


Tangible Capital Assets / continued


When conditions indicate that a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to the Town’s ability to
provide services or the value of the future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital asset
are less than its net book value, and the decline is expected to be permanent, the cost and
accumulated amortization of the asset are reduced to reflect the revised estimate of the value of the
asset’s remaining service potential.  The resulting net adjustment is reported as an expense on the
consolidated statement of operations.


Leases


Leases are classified as capital or operating leases.  Leases which transfer substantially all of the
benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases.  All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to expenses
as incurred.


Inventories and Prepaid Expenses


Inventories and prepaid expenses held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost or
replacement cost.


Pension and Employee Benefits


The Town accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System
(‘OMERS’), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined benefit plan.  The OMERS plan
specifies the retirement benefits to be received by employees based on length of service and pay rates.


Employee benefits include vacation entitlement and sick leave benefits.  Vacation entitlements are
accrued as entitlements are earned.  Sick leave benefits are accrued in accordance with the Town’s
policy.


The Town accrues its obligation for employee benefit plans which will require funding in future period. 
The cost of post-retirement benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected
benefit method pro-rated on services and management’s best estimate of salary escalation, retirement
ages of employees and expected health care costs.


Actual gains (losses) which can arise from changes in the actuarial assumptions used to determine the
accrued benefit obligation will be amortized over the average remaining service period of active
employees.


Cash and Cash Equivalents


The Town considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.


Government Transfers


Government transfers are recognized in the consolidated financial statements as revenues in the
period in which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any
eligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued


Deferred Revenues


The Town defers recognition of user charges and fees which have been collected but for which the
related services have yet to be performed.  Government transfers of gas taxes, and infrastructure
funding are reported as deferred revenues in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.  These
amounts will be recognized as revenues in the fiscal year the services are performed.


The Town receives restricted contributions under the authority of Federal and Provincial legislation and
Town by-laws.  These funds by their nature are restricted in their use and until applied to applicable
costs are recorded as deferred revenue.  Amounts applied to qualifying expenses are recorded as
revenue in the fiscal period they are expended.


Deferred revenue represents certain user charges and fees which have been collected but for which
the related services have yet to be performed.  Deferred revenue also represents contributions that the
Town has received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement that may only be used for certain
programs or in the completion of specific work.  These amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal
year the services are performed or related expenses incurred.


Investments 


Short-term and long-term investments are recorded at cost plus accrual interest.  If the market value
of investments become lower than cost and the decline in value is considered to be other than
temporary, the investments are written down to market value.


Investment income earned on surplus current funds, capital funds, reserves and reserve funds (other
than obligatory reserve funds) are reported as revenue in the period earned.  Investment income
earned on deferred revenue is added to the fund balance and forms part of respective deferred
revenue balances.


Liability for Contaminated Sites


Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or sediment of
a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard. 
The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries.  A liability for remediation of contaminated
sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use and all the following criteria are met:


(a) an environmental standard exists;
(b) contamination exceeds the environmental standard;
(c) the Town:


(i) is directly responsible; or
(ii) accepts responsibility


(d) it is expected that future economic benefit will be given up; and
(e) a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.


Financial Instruments


All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the consolidated statement of financial
position.  The Town has classified each financial instrument into one of the following categories: held-
for-trading financial assets and liabilities, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and
other financial liabilities.  Subsequent measurement of financial instruments is based on their
classification.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued


Financial Instruments / continued


Held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in those fair values recognized in net revenues.


Loans and receivables, held-to-maturity, financial assets and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.


The Town classifies cash and cash equivalents as held-for-trading financial assets, accounts receivable
as loans and receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities as other financial liabilities.


Measurement Uncertainty


The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenditures during the period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.  These
estimates are reviewed periodically and as adjustments become necessary, they are recorded in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they become known.


3. Operations of the School Boards


During 2017, the Town collected and made property tax transfers including payments in lieu of property
taxes, to the School Boards as follows:


2017 2016 


$ $ 


Property taxes 1,896,061 2,000,959 


Amounts requisitioned and paid 1,896,061 2,000,959 


4. Bank Indebtedness


The Town’s financial agreement with its bank provides for an operating credit facility of up to
$1,500,000 to finance expenses, pending receipt of property taxes and other income.  Interest on funds
drawn is charged at the Bank of Montreal’s prime rate.  As at December 31, 2017, there was $Nil (2016
$Nil) drawn on the facility.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


5. Employee Future Benefit Obligations


The Town previously provided a sick leave benefit plan, now discontinued, that would allow unused
sick leave to accumulate such that employees became entitled to cash payment when they left the
Town’s employment.


The liabilities for these accumulated days, to the extent they were vested and could be taken in cash
by an employee on termination is $65,647 (2016 $118,374).  An amount of $Nil was paid out in 2017
(2016 $64,837).  Payout to employees eligible to retire in the next five years approximates $66,000.


The Town provides non-pension retirement benefits for extended health care, dental and other benefits
to specific groups of employees.  Eligibility is based upon unreduced retirement until age 65.  The
Town’s cost is 100% of the monthly premium.


An independent actuarial study of the employee non-pension benefits has been undertaken.  The most
recent valuation of the employee future benefit was effective January 1, 2017.


The accrued benefit obligation relating to the employee non-pension retirement benefits has been
actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on services.  At December 31,
2017, based on actuarial update, the accrued benefit obligation was $582,441 (2016 $520,537).


The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the Town’s accrued benefit obligation are
as follows:


Discount Rate 3.3%
Trend Rates 7.5%decreasing by 0.5% annually to 4.0%
Employee Turnover 4.5% decreasing to 1.% after 25 years of service, none after age 55 (50


for Police and Fire)
Retirement Age Earlier of age 62 or age plus service totals 90 with at least 30 years of


service (age 60 or 85 with at least 20 years of service for Police and Fire)


The continuity of post employment benefits for 2017 is as follows:


2017 2016 


$ $ 


Balance, Beginning of Year 520,537 501,830 


Current service costs
Interest cost


Benefits paid    


75,752 
15,152 


(29,000)


23,095 
14,612 


    (19,000)


Balance, End of Year 582,441 520,537 


2017 2016


Gross Funded Unfunded Gross Funded Unfunded 


$ $ $ $ $ $ 


Health   
Benefits
Sick Leave


582,441 
65,647 


--- 
65,647 


582,491 
--- 


520,537 
118,374 


--- 
118,374 


520,537 
--- 


648,088 65,647 582,441 638,911 118,374 520,537 
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


6. Deferred Revenues


A requirement of public sector accounting standards of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada is that obligatory reserve funds be reported as deferred revenue.  This requirement is in place
as Provincial legislation restricts how these funds may be used and under certain circumstances these
funds may possibly be refunded. 


The transactions for the year are summarized below:


Parkland 
Federal Gas


Tax 
Infrastructure 


Funding Total 


$ $ $ $ 


January 1, 2017 9,501 --- --- 9,501 


Contributions from developers
Government grants
Interest


6,990 
--- 
--- 


--- 
321,420 


1,299 


--- 
167,614 


1,303 


6,990 
489,034 


2,602 


December 31, 2017 16,491 322,719 168,917 508,127 


7. Long Term Liabilities


(a) The balance of long term liabilities reported on the "Consolidated Statement of Financial Position”
is comprised of the following:


2017 2016 


$ $ 


Fixed rate bank loans with maturity dates in 2021 and interest
rates of 2.55%. 2,520,763 2,646,076 


Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation with maturity dates
between 2023 and 2047 and interest rates between 2.640% and
5.606%. 5,991,478 2,613,294 


Net long term liabilities at the end of the year 8,512,241 5,259,370 
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


7. Long Term Liabilities / continued


(b) Principal payments fall due as follows:


Water and 
Sewer Rates 


General 
Revenues Total 


$ $ $ 


2018
2019


2020   
2021


2022   
2023 to 2027


2028 and thereafter   


58,575 
60,521 


   62,537 
64,622 


   66,776 
368,808 


   1,117,106 


433,604 
448,664 


   464,309 
2,362,710 


   327,318 
1,001,421 


   1,675,270 


492,179 
509,185 
526,846 


2,427,332 
394,094 


1,370,229 
2,792,376 


1,798,945 6,713,296 8,512,241 


(c) Interest expense on long term liabilities in 2017 amounted to $197,999 (2016 $268,482).


(d) These payments are within the annual debt repayment limit prescribed by the Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Housing.


8. Municipal Equity


Municipal equity consists of:


2017 2016 


$ $ 


Investment in tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets
Long term liabilities


60,507,428 
(8,512,241)


61,781,405 


   (5,259,370)


51,995,187 56,522,035 


Unfinanced Capital Projects
Road projects
Streetlight replacement
Water and sewer projects


Recreation facilities   


--- 
--- 


(54,986)
--- 


(2,000,000)
(625,000)
(108,318)


   (1,000,000)


51,940,201 52,788,717 


Unrestricted surplus
Business Improvement Area
Library Board


Invested in inventory   


3,045 
18,196 
25,726 


5,702 
22,566 


   18,233 


Unfunded future employee benefits (582,441) (520,537)


Reserves (Schedule 1) 11,046,832 8,179,063 


Reserve Funds (Schedule 1) 4,500 4,500 


Total Municipal Equity 62,456,059 60,498,244 
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


9. Pension Contributions


The Town makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (“OMERS”),
which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of all permanent members of its staff.  The plan is a defined
benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees
based on the length of service and rates of pay.  Employers and employees contribute to the plan. 
Since any surpluses or deficits are a joint responsibility of all Ontario municipalities and their
employees, the Town does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit in these
consolidated financial statements.  


The amount contributed to OMERS was $453,435 (2016 $454,141) for current services and is included
as an expenditure on the Consolidated Statement of Operations classified under the appropriate
functional expenditure.  Contributions by employees were a similar amount.


10. Provincial Offences Administration (POA)


The United Counties of Leeds and Grenville has assumed the administration of the Provincial Offences
office for all County of Leeds and Grenville resident municipalities.  The transfer of administration from
the Ministry of the Attorney General to the Town was a result of the Provincial Offences Act (POA)
1997, which provides the framework for the transfer of responsibility and administration of POA courts.


The POA is a procedural law for administering and prosecuting provincial offences, including those
committed under the Highway Traffic Act, Compulsory Automobile Insurance Act, Trespass to Property
Act, Liquor Licence Act, Municipal By-Laws and minor federal offences.  The POA governs all aspects
of legal process from serving notice to a defendant, to conducting trials, including sentencing and
appeals.


The Town’s share of net revenues arising from operation of the POA office have been consolidated
with these consolidated financial statements.  The revenue of the court office consists of fines levied
under Parts I and III (including delay penalties) for POA charges filed in court.


If fines are paid at other court offices, the receipt is recorded in the Integrated Courts Operation
Network System (“ICON”) operated by the Province of Ontario.  Revenue is recognized when receipt
of funds is recorded by the provincial ICON system regardless of the location where payment is made.


The Town of Gananoque shares net POA revenues based on weighted assessment, population,
households and the number of tickets collected.


11. Contingent Liabilities


The nature of municipal activities is such that there may be litigation pending or in prospect at any
time.  With respect to claims as at December 31, 2017, management believes that the Town has valid
defences and appropriate insurance coverages in place.  


In the event any claims are successful, the amount of any potential liability is not determinable,
therefore, no amount has been accrued in the consolidated financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


12. Contingent Liability – Contaminated Sites


The Town has identified a potential liability for two contaminated sites.  One site was previously used
as a landfill and the other attached to an industrial property with environmental issues.  The Town has
completed environmental assessments on the industrial site.  An estimate of the liability for the
contaminated sites could not be reasonably estimated.  Both sites are currently vacant.  A liability for
the contaminated sites will be recognized in the consolidated financial statements, if required, when
a future use of the site is known.


13. Commitments


The Town has entered into the following contractual service commitments:


(a) An agreement with Frontenac Municipal Law Enforcement Incorporated for the provision of by-law
enforcement services which expires April 2020.  Fees are based on an hourly rate and mileage
is reimbursed on a kilometre basis.  Fee increases are to be reviewed from time to time at the
request of the contractor.  Fees paid under the contract for 2017 were $90,070 (2016 $88,593). 


(b) The Town has entered into a contractual obligation with Waste Connections of Canada for the
collection and disposal of solid waste and recycled materials.  Fees are based on tonnage and
are adjusted for a fuel surcharge and annually for inflation.  The contract expires December 2018. 
Fees paid under the contract for 2017 were $278,434 (2016 $262,930).


(c) The Town has entered into agreements to lease computer and office equipment, of which the
costs are provided for in the operating budget.  Any lease may be terminated with the payment
of the present value of the remaining lease payments.  The future minimum lease payments are:


$ 
2018 59,128 
2019 30,533 
2020 2,928 
2021 2,076 


14. Risk Management


In the normal course of operations, the Town is exposed to a variety of financial risks which are actively
managed by the Town.


The Town’s financial instruments consist of cash, investments, accounts receivable, mortgage
receivable and accounts payable.  The fair values of cash, investments, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities approximate their carrying values because of their expected short term maturity and
treatment on normal trade terms.


The Town’s exposure to and management of risk has not changed materially from December 31, 2016.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


14. Risk Management / continued


Credit Risk


Credit risk arises from the possibility that the entities to which the Town provides services to may 
experience difficulty and be unable to fulfill their obligations.  The Town is exposed to financial risk that
arises from the credit quality of the entities to which it provides services.  The Town does not have a
significant exposure to any individual customer or counter party.  As a result, the requirement for credit
risk related reserves for accounts receivable is minimal.


Interest Rate Risk


Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that the value of, or cash flows related to, a financial
instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates.  The Town is exposed to
financial risk that arises from the interest rate differentials between the market interest rate and the
rates on its cash and cash equivalents and operating loan.  Changes in variable interest rates could
cause unanticipated fluctuations in the Town’s operating results.


Liquidity Risk


Liquidity risk is the risk that the Town will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due.  The Town
requires working capital to meet day-to-day operating activities.  Management expects that the Town’s
cash flows from operating activities will be sufficient to meet these requirements. 


15. Tangible Capital Assets


2017 2016 


$ $ 


Land 


Buildings     
Equipment


Vehicles     
Linear Assets


Roads    
Bridges


Sidewalks    
Traffic Lights


Street Lights    
Sanitary Sewer


Storm Sewer    
Water Lines


Construction in Progress    
Road Projects


Water and Sewer Projects    
Recreation Projects


Administration    


5,027,221 
15,612,090 


3,801,989 
472,586 


15,810,113 
2,471,146 
1,604,867 


191,399 
655,341 


5,886,099 
1,546,615 
6,845,917 


89,827 
84,814 
51,840 


355,564 


5,027,221 
16,283,537 


3,759,760 


   526,901 


   16,245,156 
2,549,525 


   1,394,686 
209,658 


   698,168 
6,059,901 


   1,550,106 
7,100,230 


   
76,059 


   61,824 
40,228 


   198,445 


60,507,428 61,781,405 


For additional information, see Schedule 2 < Tangible Capital Assets.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


16. Segmented Information


The Town is a diversified municipal government that provides a wide range of services to its citizens. 
The services are provided by departments and their activities are reported in the consolidated
statement of operations.


Departments have been separately disclosed in the segmented information, along with the service they
provide, are set out in the schedule below.


For each reported segment, expenditures represent both amounts that are directly attributable to the
segment and amounts that are allocated on a reasonable basis.  Therefore, certain allocation
methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented financial information.


The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements as disclosed in note 2.
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


16. Segmented Information / continued


2017


Salaries, 
Wages & 


Employee 
Benefits 


Debenture 
Debt 


Interest 


Materials 
& 


Services 


Materials 
& 


Services 
Non TCA 


Interfunc 
tional 


Adjustments 
External 


Transfers Amortization Total 


$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 


General Government
Governance
Corporate Management     
  & Program Support


90,294 


589,809 


--- 


--- 


11,270 


483,051 


--- 


39,729 


--- 


--- 


--- 


31,478 


--- 


93,336 


101,564 


1,237,403 


Protection to Persons 
  and Property
Fire
Police
Conservation Authority
Protective Inspection
Emergency Measures


675,782 
2,920,646 


--- 
129,781 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


45,627 


138,672 
343,477 


9,129 
81,230 


106,221 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


45,000 
(20,000)


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
51,359 
40,410 


--- 
--- 


108,585 
104,058 


--- 
--- 
--- 


968,039 
3,399,540 


49,539 
211,011 
151,848 


Transportation
Roadways
Winter Control
Parking
Street Lighting


522,296 
80,091 


970 
--- 


51,201 
--- 
--- 


10,850 


405,298 
40,587 
39,114 


123,868 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


919,030 
--- 
--- 


51,329 


1,897,825 
120,678 
40,084 


186,047 


Environmental
Sanitary Sewer
Waterworks
Waste Services


342,766 
409,426 
67,759 


18,406 
--- 
--- 


311,119 
354,896 
290,385 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
(25,000)


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


441,961 
573,958 


--- 


1,114,252 
1,313,280 


358,144 


Health Services
Public Health Services
Hospital
Ambulance
Doctor Recruitment


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


86,724 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


96,806 
40,000 


282,975 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


96,806 
40,000 


282,975 
86,724 


Social and Family
General Assistance
Assistance to 
  Aged Persons
Child Care
Social Housing


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


15,029 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


167,146 


6,173 
29,270 


218,368 


--- 


14,206 
--- 
--- 


167,146 


35,408 
29,270 


218,368 


Recreation and
  Cultural Services
Parks
Recreation Facilities 
  & Programs
Libraries


156,870 


495,990 
133,048 


--- 


56,886 
--- 


111,399 


586,625 
106,648 


--- 


117,798 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 


--- 


190,557 
--- 


--- 


296,009 
20,625 


268,269 


1,743,865 
260,321 


Planning and
  Development
Planning & Zoning
Commercial & Industrial


87,377 
282,345 


--- 
--- 


18,596 
84,164 


--- 
29,644 


--- 
--- 


--- 
27,827 


--- 
--- 


105,973 
423,980 


Post Retirement
Benefits 61,904 --- --- --- --- --- --- 61,904 


2017 7,047,154 197,999 3,732,473 187,171 --- 1,182,369 2,623,097 14,970,263 
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


16. Segmented Information / continued


2016
Salaries, 
Wages & 


Employee 
Benefits 


Debenture 
Debt 


Interest 


Materials 
& 


Services 


Materials 
& 


Services 
Non TCA 


Interfunc 
tional 


Adjustments 
External 


Transfers Amortization Total 


$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 


General Government
Governance
Corporate Management    
& Program Support


82,768 


639,784 


--- 


--- 


9,938 


478,331 


--- 


115,415 


--- 


--- 


--- 


49,456 


--- 


100,949 


92,706 


1,383,935 


Protection to Persons 
  and Property
Fire
Police
Conservation Authority
Protective Inspection
Emergency Measures


711,210 
2,911,164 


--- 
68,038 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


83,097 


127,192 
218,478 


1,309 
74,089 


127,396 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


10,000 
(10,000)


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
87,534 
39,575 


--- 
--- 


129,817 
86,733 


--- 
--- 
--- 


978,219 
3,293,909 


40,884 
142,127 
210,493 


Transportation
Roadways
Winter Control
Parking
Street Lighting


504,909 
101,142 


3,024 
150 


90,249 
--- 
--- 
--- 


419,331 
61,327 
38,243 


202,361 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


863,831 
--- 
--- 


29,447 


1,878,320 
162,469 
41,267 


231,958 


Environmental
Sanitary Sewer
Waterworks
Waste Services


351,055 
445,211 
82,073 


4,962 
17,388 


--- 


296,563 
398,582 
283,015 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


486,737 
514,446 


--- 


1,139,317 
1,375,627 


365,088 


Health Services
Public Health Services
Hospital
Ambulance
Doctor Recruitment


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


85,678 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


96,611 
40,000 


258,985 
--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


96,611 
40,000 


258,985 
85,678 


Social and Family
General Assistance
Assistance to 
  Aged Persons
Child Care
Social Housing


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


16,489 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


214,205 


4,775 
32,395 


248,151 


--- 


14,206 
--- 
--- 


214,205 


35,470 
32,395 


248,151 


Recreation and
  Cultural Services
Parks
Recreation Facilities 
  & Programs
Libraries


159,455 


564,251 
131,732 


--- 


56,297 
--- 


124,244 


531,886 
58,559 


--- 


43,138 
47,191 


--- 


--- 
--- 


--- 


209,962 
--- 


--- 


290,862 
24,284 


283,699 


1,696,396 
262,066 


Planning and
  Development
Planning & Zoning
Commercial & Industrial


113,276 
214,093 


--- 
--- 


15,612 
85,768 


--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 


--- 
39,688 


--- 
--- 


128,888 
339,549 


Post Retirement
Benefits 18,707 --- --- --- --- --- --- 18,707 


2016 7,102,042 268,482 3,637,902 206,044 --- 1,321,337 2,541,312 15,077,119 
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Town of Gananoque
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


17. Budget Figures


The 2017 approved budget was prepared on a cash based approach with a reconciliation to a budged
based on Public Sector Accounting Standards.  The cash based approach includes capital
expenditures, repayment of long term debt and transfers to and from reserves which are removed in
the year end Statement of Operations.  The revenues attributable to these items continue to be
included in the Statement of Operations, resulting In a significant variance.  The following analysis is
provided to assist readers in their understanding of differences between the approved budget and the
audited financial statements:


Budget Actual 


$ $ 


Total Revenues
Total Expenditures


16,545,158 
15,656,255 


16,895,082 
14,970,263 


Net Revenues
Amortization


888,903 
2,762,364 


1,924,819 
2,623,097 


Adjusted Net Revenues


Capital Revenues


3,651,267 


315,828 


4,547,916 


32,996 


Funds Available


Capital Expenditures
Acquisition (Consumption) of Inventory 
Unfunded Future Employee Benefits
Principal Repayments 
Net Long Term Debt Acquired


3,967,095 


(6,340,023)
--- 
--- 


(616,807)
1,000,000 


4,580,912 


(1,349,120)
(7,493)
61,904 


(372,129)
3,625,000 


(Decrease) Increase in Operating Surplus (1,989,735) 6,539,074 


Allocated as follows:
 Increase in unfunded capital


Decrease in local board surplus
Net Transfers (from) to reserves


53,332 
--- 


(2,043,067)


3,678,332 
(7,027)


2,867,769 


(1,989,735) 6,539,074 
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Town of Gananoque
Schedule 1 < Continuity of Reserves and Reserve Funds


For the year ended December 31
(Note 17)


Budget 2017 2016 


$ $ $ 


Net Transfers From / (To) Other Funds
Transfers from operations


Transfers to capital acquisitions   
3,141,568 


    (5,184,635)
4,343,168 


(1,475,399)


3,939,572 


  (3,867,501)


Total Net Transfers (2,043,067) 2,867,769 72,071 


Reserves and Reserve Fund Balances,
Change in Year (2,043,067) 2,867,769 72,071 


Reserves and Reserve Fund Balances,
Beginning of Year 8,183,563 8,183,563 8,111,492 


Reserves and Reserve Fund Balances, 
End of Year 6,140,496 11,051,332 8,183,563 


Composition of Reserves and Reserve Funds


For the year ended December 31 2017 2016 


$ $ 


Reserves set aside for specific purposes by Council:
< for working capital


< for contingencies    
< for election


< for economic development    
< for winter control


< for other    


647,809 
119,986 


15,600 
274,207 
100,000 
369,663 


647,809 


    89,972 
6,600 


   256,800 
41,000 


   335,105 


1,527,265 1,377,286 


For Capital Purposes     
< for future capital expenditures < infrastructure   


< recreation facilities


< waterworks and sewer    
< parks


< parking    


5,384,645 
18,531 


4,058,608 
2,480 


55,303 


3,492,590 
18,531 


   3,270,356 
2,480 


   17,820 


9,519,567 6,801,777 


Total Reserves 11,046,832 8,179,063 


Reserve Funds
For Capital Purposes


< for library purposes     4,500 4,500 


Total Reserves and Reserve Funds 11,051,332 8,183,563 


The accompany notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Schedule 2 < 2017 Tangible Capital Assets


Asset Class
Cost 


01/01/17 Additions (Disposals)
Cost 


31/12/17 


$ $ $ $ 


Land 5,027,221 --- --- 5,027,221 


Buildings 29,901,715 --- --- 29,901,715 


Equipment 6,832,755 486,899 --- 7,319,654 


Vehicles 2,104,368 71,288 --- 2,175,656 


Linear Assets
Roads
Bridges
Sidewalks
Traffic Lights
Street Lights
Sanitary Sewer 
Storm Sewer
Water Lines


28,708,120 
3,819,584 
3,428,929 


754,577 
1,520,307 


11,429,369 
4,312,887 


14,738,966 


124,230 
--- 


311,233 
16,760 
8,502 


34,604 
51,006 
39,109 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


28,832,350 
3,819,584 
3,740,162 


771,337 
1,528,809 


11,463,973 
4,363,893 


14,778,075 


Construction in 
  Progress


Roads Projects
Water and 
   Sewer Projects
Recreation Projects
Administration


76,059 


61,824 
40,228 


198,445 


13,768 


22,990 
11,612 


157,119 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


89,827 


84,814 
51,840 


355,564 


112,955,354 1,349,120 --- 114,304,474 


Asset Class


Accumulated 
Amortization 


01/01/17 Amortization (Disposals)


Accumulated 
Amortization 


31/12/17 


Net Book 
Value 


31/12/17 


$ $ $ $ $ 


Land --- --- --- --- 5,027,221 


Buildings 13,618,178 671,447 --- 14,289,625 15,612,090 


Equipment 3,072,995 444,670 --- 3,517,665 3,801,989 


Vehicles 1,577,467 125,603 --- 1,703,070 472,586 


Linear Assets
Roads
Bridges
Sidewalks
Traffic Lights
Street Lights
Sanitary Sewer 
Storm Sewer
Water Lines


12,462,964 
1,270,059 
2,034,243 


544,919 
822,139 


5,369,468 
2,762,781 
7,638,736 


559,273 
78,379 


101,052 
35,019 
51,329 


208,406 
54,497 


293,422 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


13,022,237 
1,348,438 
2,135,295 


579,938 
873,468 


5,577,874 
2,817,278 
7,932,158 


15,810,113 
2,471,146 
1,604,867 


191,399 
655,341 


5,886,099 
1,546,615 
6,845,917 


Construction in 
  Progress


Roads Projects
Water and 
   Sewer Projects
Recreation Projects
Administration


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


89,827 


84,814 
51,840 


355,564 


51,173,949 2,623,097 --- 53,797,046 60,507,428 


The accompany notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Schedule 2 < 2016 Tangible Capital Assets


Asset Class
Cost 


01/01/16 Additions (Disposals)
Cost 


31/12/16 


$ $ $ $ 


Land 5,027,221 --- --- 5,027,221 


Buildings 29,565,314 336,401 --- 29,901,715 


Equipment 6,280,717 552,038 --- 6,832,755 


Vehicles 1,895,076 227,451 (18,159) 2,104,368 


Linear Assets
Roads
Bridges
Sidewalks
Traffic Lights
Street Lights
Sanitary Sewer 
Storm Sewer
Water Lines


26,665,569 
3,819,584 
3,418,732 


754,577 
872,926 


10,638,865 
4,312,887 


13,817,053 


2,042,551 
--- 


10,197 
--- 


647,381 
790,504 


--- 
921,913 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


28,708,120 
3,819,584 
3,428,929 


754,577 
1,520,307 


11,429,369 
4,312,887 


14,738,966 


Construction in 
  Progress


Roads Projects
Water and 
   Sewer Projects
Recreation Projects
Administration


76,059 


32,972 
--- 


147,250 


--- 


28,852 
40,228 
51,195 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


76,059 


61,824 
40,228 


198,445 


107,324,802 5,648,711 (18,159) 112,955,354 


Asset Class


Accumulated 
Amortization 


01/01/16 Amortization (Disposals)


Accumulated 
Amortization 


31/12/16 


Net Book 
Value 


31/12/16


$ $ $ $ $ 


Land --- --- --- --- 5,027,221 


Buildings 12,938,673 679,505 --- 13,618,178 16,283,537 


Equipment 2,661,985 411,010 --- 3,072,995 3,759,760 


Vehicles 1,475,342 120,284 (18,159) 1,577,467 526,901 


Linear Assets
Roads
Bridges
Sidewalks
Traffic Lights
Street Lights
Sanitary Sewer 
Storm Sewer
Water Lines


11,927,882 
1,191,680 
1,937,825 


510,460 
792,692 


5,159,030 
2,708,709 
7,346,518 


535,082 
78,379 
96,418 
34,459 
29,447 


210,438 
54,072 


292,218 


--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 


12,462,964 
1,270,059 
2,034,243 


544,919 
822,139 


5,369,468 
2,762,781 
7,638,736 


16,245,156 
2,549,525 
1,394,686 


209,658 
698,168 


6,059,901 
1,550,106 
7,100,230 


Construction in 
  Progress


Roads Projects
Water and 
   Sewer Projects
Recreation Projects
Administration


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


--- 


--- 
--- 
--- 


76,059 


61,824 
40,228 


198,445 


48,650,796 2,541,312 (18,159) 51,173,949 61,781,405 


The accompany notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT


To the Board Members, Inhabitants and Ratepayers 
of the Town of Gananoque Public Library Board:


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Town of Gananoque Public Library Board
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and the statement of
operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements


The Town of Gananoque Public Library Board’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.


Opinion


In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Town of Gananoque Public Library Board as at December 31, 2017 and the results of its operations,
changes in net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
Public Sector Accounting Standards.


Allan and Partners LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants


Perth, Ontario,
June 19, 2018.
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Town of Gananoque
Public Library Board


Statement of Financial Position


December 31 2017 2016 


$ $ 


ASSETS


Financial Assets


Cash and short term investments 39,252 33,966 


LIABILITIES


Financial Liabilities


Due to Town 16,556 6,900 


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 22,696 27,066 


NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS


Tangible capital assets (note 4) 81,540 77,697 


ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (note 3) 104,236 104,763 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Public Library Board


Statement of Operations


For the year ended December 31
(Note 5)
Budget 2017 2016 


$ $ $ 


REVENUES


Municipal Grants
Province of Ontario < operating


< other     
User Charges < fees, service charges and fines


Other Income    
Donations


Trillium grant    


192,868 
13,700 


   600 
1,217 


    
--- 


   32,508 


192,868 
11,200 


3,538 
2,225 


118 
32,509 


190,018 
16,200 


   7,400 
1,304 


   
1,357 


   47,491 


TOTAL REVENUES 240,893 242,458 263,770 


EXPENDITURES


Salaries and benefits


Automation    
Insurance    
Supplies


Utilities and maintenance    
Administration


Trillium project   
Grants


Amortization     


135,667 
5,200 


   9,200 
8,068 


   23,650 
4,600 


   32,508 
--- 


   22,000 


133,048 
6,236 
8,856 


11,286 
20,849 


4,639 
32,509 


4,938 
20,624 


131,732 


   7,944 
9,048 


   9,399 
19,519 


   5,505 
47,491 


--- 


   27,897 


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 240,893 242,985 258,535 


ANNUAL (DEFICIT) SURPLUS 


ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR


--- 


   
104,763 


(527)


104,763 


5,235 


   
99,528 


ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR 104,763 104,236 104,763 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Public Library Board


Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets


For the year ended December 31 2017 2016 


$ $ 


ANNUAL (DEFICIT) SURPLUS (527) 5,235 


Amortization of tangible capital assets
Acquisition of tangible capital assets


20,624 
(24,467)


27,897 
(24,853)


(3,843) 3,044 


(DECREASE) INCREASE IN 
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (4,370) 8,279 


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 27,066 18,787 


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, END OF YEAR 22,696 27,066 


Statement of Cash Flows


For the year ended December 31 2017 2016 


$ $ 


OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Annual (deficit) surplus 


Amortization    
(527)


20,624 


5,235 


   27,897 


20,097 33,132 


Net Change in Non-Cash Working Capital Items
Due to Town 9,656 535 


Working Capital from Operations 29,753 33,667 


CAPITAL ACTIVITIES


Acquisition of tangible capital assets (24,467) (24,853)


NET INCREASE IN CASH


CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR


5,286 


33,966 


8,814 


   
25,152 


CASH, END OF YEAR 39,252 33,966 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Public Library Board


Notes to the Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


1. Status of the Board 


The Gananoque Public Library Board (the ‘Board’) was established by By-law in 1981 under the Public
Libraries Act by the Town of Gananoque.  The predecessor had history back to 1892.


2. Significant Accounting Policies


The financial statements of the Gananoque Public Library Board are the representations of
management and have been prepared in all material respects in accordance with Canadian Public
Sector Accounting Standards.  Significant aspects of the accounting policies by the Board are as
follows:


Reporting Entity


The financial statements reflect financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and expenditures,
reserves, reserve funds and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of the Board.


Basis of Accounting


The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  The accrual basis of
accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable.  Expenditures are recognized as they are
incurred and measurable based on receipt of goods and services and/or the creation of a legal
obligation to pay.  


Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year, and are not intended
for sale in the ordinary course of operations.  The change in non-financial assets during the year,
together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the Changes in Net Financial Assets for
the year.


Tangible Capital Assets


Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which include all amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost of the tangible capital
assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:


Assets Estimated Useful Life


Books 7 years


Amortization is charged from the date of acquisition.  Assets under construction are not amortized until
the asset is available for productive use, at which time they are capitalized.  


Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt,
and that fair value is also recorded as revenue.  Similarly, transfers of assets to third parties are
recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of other assets as of the date of transfer.
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Town of Gananoque
Public Library Board


Notes to the Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued


Tangible Capital Assets / continued


When tangible capital assets are disposed of, either by way of a sale, destruction or loss, or
abandonment of the asset, the asset’s net book value, historical cost less accumulated amortization,
is written off.  Any resulting gain or loss, equal to the proceeds on disposal less the asset’s net book
value, is reported on the statement of operations in the year of disposal.  Transfers of assets to third
parties are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the asset as of the date of transfer.


When conditions indicate that a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to the Board’s ability to
provide services or the value of the future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital asset
are less than its net book value, and the decline is expected to be permanent, the cost and
accumulated amortization of the asset are reduced to reflect the revised estimate of the value of the
asset’s remaining service potential.  The resulting net adjustment is reported as an expense on the
statement of operations.


Cash and Cash Equivalents


The Board considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.


Government Transfers


Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenues in the period in which
events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria
have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.


Deferred Revenues


The Board defers recognition of user charges and fees which have been collected but for which the
related services have yet to be performed.  These amounts will be recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year the services are performed.


The Board receives restricted contributions under the authority of Federal and Provincial legislation
and Board by-laws.  These funds by their nature are restricted in their use and until applied to
applicable costs are recorded as deferred revenue.  Amounts applied to qualifying expenses are
recorded as revenue in the fiscal period they are expended.


Deferred revenue represents certain user charges and fees which have been collected but for which
the related services have yet to be performed.  Deferred revenue also represents contributions that the
Board has received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement that may only be used for certain
programs or in the completion of specific work.  These amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal
year the services are performed or related expenses incurred.


Financial Instruments


All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the statement of financial position. The
Board has classified each financial instrument into one of the following categories: held-for-trading
financial assets and liabilities, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and other
financial liabilities.  Subsequent measurement of financial instruments is based on their classification.
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Town of Gananoque
Public Library Board


Notes to the Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued


Financial Instruments / continued


Held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in those fair values recognized in net revenues.


Loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.


The Board classifies cash and cash equivalents as held-for-trading financial assets, accounts
receivable as loans and receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities as other financial
liabilities.


Measurement Uncertainty


The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during
the period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.  These estimates are reviewed periodically
and as adjustments become necessary, they are recorded in the financial statements in the period in
which they become known.


3. Accumulated Surplus


Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus (deficit) and reserves as follows:


2017 2016 


$ $ 


Surplus
Invested in tangible capital assets 81,540 77,697 


Unrestricted Surplus 18,196 22,566 


Reserves 
Capital 4,500 4,500 


Accumulated Surplus 104,236 104,763 
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Town of Gananoque
Public Library Board


Notes to the Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


4. Tangible Capital Assets


Net Book Value of Assets 2017 2016 


$ $ 


      Books 81,540 77,697 


For additional information, see Schedule 2 < Tangible Capital Assets.


5. Budget Figures


Gananoque Public Library Board reviews its operating and capital budgets each year.  The approved
operating budget for 2017 is included in the budget figures presented in the Statement of Operations.
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Town of Gananoque
Public Library Board


Schedule 1 < Continuity of Reserves and Reserve Funds


For the year ended December 31
(Note 5)
Budget 2017 2016 


$ $ $ 


Net Transfers from (to) Other Funds
Transfer from current fund
Transfer from capital fund


--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 


--- 
--- 


Total Net Transfers --- --- --- 


Reserves and Reserve Fund Balance, 
Change in Year --- --- --- 


Reserves and Reserve Fund Balance, 
Beginning of Year 4,500 4,500 4,500 


Reserves and Reserve Fund Balance, 
End of Year 4,500 4,500 4,500 


Composition of Reserves


For the year ended December 31 2017 2016 


$ $ 


Reserves 
Capital 4,500 4,500 


The accompany notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Public Library Board


Schedule 2 < Tangible Capital Assets


December 31, 2017


Assets 
Cost 


01/01/17
Additions 


(Disposals)
Cost 


31/12/17


Accumulated 
Amortization 


01/01/17
Amortization 


2017 


Accumulated 
Amortization 


31/12/17


Net Book 
Value 


31/12/17


$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 


Books 327,700 24,467 352,167 250,003 20,624 270,627 81,540 


December 31, 2016


Assets
Cost 


01/01/16
Additions 


(Disposals)
Cost 


31/12/16


Accumulated 
Amortization 


01/01/16 
Amortization 


2016 


Accumulated 
Amortization 


31/12/16 


Net Book 
Value 


31/12/16 


$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 


Books 302,847 24,853 327,700 222,106 27,897 250,003 77,697 


The accompany notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT


To the Board Members, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the Town of 
Gananoque Business Improvement Area Committee:


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Town of Gananoque Business
Improvement Area Committee which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017
and the statement of operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements


The Town of Gananoque Business Improvement Area Committee’s management is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian Public Sector
Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.


Opinion


In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Town of Gananoque Business Improvement Area Committee as at December 31, 2017 and the results of
its operations, changes in net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.


Allan and Partners LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants


Perth, Ontario,
June 19, 2018.
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Town of Gananoque
Business Improvement Area Committee


Statement of Financial Position


December 31 2017 2016 


$ $ 


ASSETS


Financial Assets


Cash


Due from Town   
1,003 
2,042 


1,003 


    4,699 


3,045 5,702 


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 3,045 5,702 


ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (note 3) 3,045 5,702 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.


41


Draf
t fo


r D
isc


us
sio


n P
urp


os
es


 O
nly







Town of Gananoque
Business Improvement Area Committee


Statement of Operations


For the year ended December 31
(Note 4)
Budget 2017 2016 


$ $ $ 


REVENUES


Municipal contribution
Government grants


Fees and service charges     


44,000 
2,000 


   9,000 


44,650 
2,000 


--- 


44,000 
2,000 


   4,659 


TOTAL REVENUES 55,000 46,650 50,659 


EXPENDITURES


Administration
Advertising and promotion


Beautification     
Salaries and benefits


Special events   
Taxation write offs


Contribution to Town Beautification Project    


4,208 
2,500 


   --- 
21,292 


   3,000 
4,000 


   20,000 


4,425 
551 


--- 
17,564 


4,353 
3,517 


18,897 


8,263 
6,293 


   2,550 
4,779 


   8,873 
1,057 


   5,000 


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 55,000 49,307 36,815 


ANNUAL (DEFICIT) SURPLUS 


ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (DEFICIT), 
BEGINNING OF YEAR


--- 


5,702 


(2,657)


5,702 


13,844 


(8,142)


ACCUMULATED SURPLUS,
END OF YEAR 5,702 3,045 5,702 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Business Improvement Area Committee


Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets


For the year ended December 31 2017 2016 


$ $ 


ANNUAL (DEFICIT) SURPLUS (2,657) 13,844 


(DECREASE) INCREASE IN 
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (2,657) 13,844 


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (DEBT), 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,702 (8,142)


NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, END OF YEAR 3,045 5,702 


Statement of Cash Flows


For the year ended December 31 2017 20 16 


$ $ 


OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Annual (deficit) surplus (2,657) 13,844 


Net Change in Non-Cash Working Capital Items
Due from (to) Town 2,657 (16,193)


Working Capital from Operations --- (2,349)


NET DECREASE IN CASH


CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR


--- 


1,003 


(2,349)


3,352 


CASH, END OF YEAR 1,003 1,003 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Gananoque
Business Improvement Area Committee


Notes to the Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


1. Status of the Committee


Pursuant to the Municipal Act, the Gananoque Business Improvement Area Committee (the
‘Committee’) was established by By-law No. 78-33 on October 17, 1978 by the Town of Gananoque.


2. Significant Accounting Policies


The financial statements of the Gananoque Business Improvement Area Committee are the
representations of management and have been prepared in all material respects in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.  Significant aspects of accounting policies by the
Committee are as follows:


Reporting Entity


The financial statements reflect financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and expenditures,
reserves, reserve funds and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of the Committee.


Basis of Accounting


The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  The accrual basis of
accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable.  Expenditures are recognized as they are
incurred and measurable based on receipt of goods and services and/or the creation of a legal
obligation to pay.  


Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year, and are not intended
for sale in the ordinary course of operations.  The change in non-financial assets during the year,
together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the Change in Net Financial Assets for
the year.


Tangible Capital Assets


Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which include all amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, less residual value, of the
tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:


Assets Estimated Useful Life


Equipment 3 to 30 years


Amortization is charged from the date of acquisition.  Assets under construction are not amortized until
the asset is available for productive use, at which time they are capitalized.


Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt,
and that fair value is also recorded as revenue.  Similarly, transfers of assets to third parties are
recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of other assets as of the date of transfer.
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Town of Gananoque
Business Improvement Area Committee


Notes to the Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued


Tangible Capital Assets / continued


When tangible capital assets are disposed of, either by way of a sale, destruction or loss, or
abandonment of the asset, the asset’s net book value, historical cost less accumulated amortization,
is written off.  Any resulting gain or loss, equal to the proceeds on disposal less the asset’s net book
value, is reported on the statement of operations in the year of disposal.  Transfers of assets to third
parties are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the asset as of the date of transfer.


When conditions indicate that a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to the Committee’s ability
to provide services or the value of the future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital
asset are less than its net book value, and the decline is expected to be permanent, the cost and
accumulated amortization of the asset are reduced to reflect the revised estimate of the value of the
asset’s remaining service potential.  The resulting net adjustment is reported as an expense on the
statement of operations.


Cash and Cash Equivalents


The Committee considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.


Government Transfers


Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenues in the period in which
events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria
have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.


Deferred Revenues


The Committee defers recognition of user charges and fees which have been collected but for which
the related services have yet to be performed.  These amounts will be recognized as revenues in the
fiscal year the services are performed.


The Committee receives restricted contributions under the authority of Federal and Provincial
legislation and Committee by-laws.  These funds by their nature are restricted in their use and until
applied to applicable costs are recorded as deferred revenue.  Amounts applied to qualifying expenses
are recorded as revenue in the fiscal period they are expended.


Deferred revenue represents certain user charges and fees which have been collected but for which
the related services have yet to be performed.  Deferred revenue also represents contributions that the
Committee has received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement that may only be used for
certain programs or in the completion of specific work.  These amounts are recognized as revenue in
the fiscal year the services are performed or related expenses incurred.


Financial Instruments


All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the statement of financial position.  The
Committee has classified each financial instrument into one of the following categories: held-for-trading
financial assets and liabilities, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and other
financial liabilities.  Subsequent measurement of financial instruments is based on their classification.
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Town of Gananoque
Business Improvement Area Committee


Notes to the Financial Statements


December 31, 2017


2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued


Financial Instruments / continued


Held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in those fair values recognized in net revenues.


Loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.


The Committee classifies cash and cash equivalents as held-for-trading financial assets, accounts
receivable as loans and receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities as other financial
liabilities.


Measurement Uncertainty


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions on such areas as employee
benefits, assessment appeals and environmental provisions.  These estimates and assumptions are
based on the Board`s best information and judgment and may differ significantly based on actual
results.


3. Accumulated Surplus 


Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves as follows:


2017 2016 


$ $ 


Unrestricted Surplus 3,045 5,702 


Accumulated Surplus 3,045 5,702 


4. Budget Figures


Gananoque Business Improvement Area Committee reviews its operating and capital budgets each
year.  The approved operating budget for 2017 is included in the budget figures presented in the
Statement of Operations.


46


Draf
t fo


r D
isc


us
sio


n P
urp


os
es


 O
nly







Town of Gananoque
Waterworks and Sewer Operations


Schedule of Financial Activities


For the year ended December 31
(Note 17)


Budget 2017 2016 


$ $ $ 


REVENUES


User charges < water and sewer revenue
< penalty


< interest    
< miscellaneous fees and service charges


2,765,410 


   25,000 
15,000 


   7,000 


2,573,934 
22,696 
22,642 
43,782 


2,529,186 


   24,352 
20,606 


   6,706 


TOTAL REVENUES 2,812,410 2,663,054 2,580,850 


EXPENDITURES


Overhead


< salaries and benefits    
< materials and supplies


< vehicle and equipment operation    
Water treatment plant & storage tank


< salaries and benefits    
< materials and supplies


< property tax    
Water distribution


< salaries and benefits    
< materials and supplies


Water meters and meter reading    
< salaries and benefits


< materials and supplies    
Sewage pumping stations and lagoon


< salaries and benefits    
< materials and supplies


< property tax    
Sewage collection


< salaries and benefits    
< materials and supplies


Interest on long term debt    
Minor capital


Amortization        


637,421 
122,924 


27,890 


   
121,365 


   230,319 
43,333 


   
58,295 


   36,350 


   17,830 
1,500 


   
56,135 


   152,775 
10,063 


   
18,020 


   61,750 


   24,198 
--- 


   1,082,466 


409,703 
97,141 
15,355 


126,247 
189,838 


40,505 


95,716 
28,845 


30,491 
108 


69,148 
219,812 


19,987 


19,955 
22,623 
50,498 


635 
1,015,919 


422,545 
102,307 


14,886 


    
134,069 


    241,682 


42,483 
   


102,767 


   45,447 


   33,284 
4,024 


   
70,643 


  182,288 
9,866 


   
32,377 


   37,133 


   22,349 
15,610 


   947,111 


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,702,634 2,452,526 2,460,871 


NET REVENUES FOR THE YEAR 109,776 210,528 119,979 


CASH REQUIREMENTS


Net Revenues (Expenditures) 109,776 210,528 119,979 


Amortization
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Increase (decrease) in inventory
Proceeds of long term debt
Principal paid on long term debt


1,082,466 
(3,083,865)


--- 
--- 


(148,506)


1,015,919 
(349,524)


533 
1,436,920 


(89,204)


947,111 
(1,966,906)


7,517 
(63,736)


Total Cash Requirements (2,040,129) 2,225,172 (956,035)
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Town of Gananoque
Police Commission


Schedule of Financial Activities


For the year ended December 31
(Note 17)


Budget 2017 2016 


$ $ $ 


REVENUES


Provincial grants


Provincial grants for community projects    
Miscellaneous fees and service charges


Internal charges    


100,000 


   --- 
338,600 


   20,000 


99,574 
96,745 


693,074 
20,000 


81,204 


   87,534 
480,433 


   10,000 


TOTAL REVENUES 458,600 909,393 659,171 


EXPENDITURES


Police Force
Salaries and benefits
Materials and supplies


Vehicle maintenance    
Equipment repair and replacement


Community projects < grants    
Dispatch and Communications


Salaries and benefits    
Administration


Salaries and benefits    
Materials and supplies


Police Services Board    
Honorarium


Materials and supplies    
Youth in Policing and Police Auxiliary


Salaries and benefits    
Materials and supplies


Occupancy    
Materials and supplies


Amortization    


2,061,610 
107,200 


   25,000 
20,000 


   --- 


   451,680 


   289,050 
37,200 


   
6,117 


   7,000 


   15,160 
3,000 


   
57,480 


   101,090 


2,117,045 
195,228 


36,317 
16,390 
97,145 


457,836 


324,610 
38,504 


5,500 
8,077 


16,281 
2,549 


51,394 
104,058 


2,147,887 
132,023 


   34,172 
16,811 


    87,534 


   448,976 


   292,506 
30,590 


   
5,500 


   2,342 


   16,295 
2,540 


   
61,224 


   86,733 


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,181,587 3,470,934 3,365,133 


NET EXPENDITURES FOR THE YEAR (2,722,987) (2,561,541) (2,705,962)


CASH REQUIREMENTS


Net Expenditures (2,722,987) (2,561,541) (2,705,962)


Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization


(80,000)


  101,090 
(89,756)
104,058 


(129,354)


  86,733 


(2,701,897) (2,547,239) (2,748,583)
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COW Report – FIN-2018-25 
 


COW Date: June 19, 2018          ☐      IN CAMERA 


Subject:  Capital Matters Pending 


Author:  Melanie Kirkby, Treasurer        ☒     OPEN SESSION 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE RECEIVE THE CAPITAL MATTERS PENDING UPDATE, AS PRESENTED IN 
COW REPORT FIN-2018-25. 
 


STRATEGIC PLAN COMMENTS: 
Sector 3 – Financial Sustainability – Strategic Initiative #1 - Action L) Develop financial controllership 
policies in consultation with the Municipal Auditor.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff provide Council with monthly reports on the status of approved annual Capital projects.  


 


INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: 
Senior management provides the status of each project and the Treasurer notes the expenses as of the 
date of the report, as per the schedule attached to this report. 
 


APPLICABLE POLICY/LEGISLATION: 
None 
 


FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:   
As per capital budget and any in year project approvals. 
 


CONSULTATIONS:  
Senior Management 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Capital Matters Pending Spreadsheet 
 


A
P


P
R


O
V


A
L 


               


___________________________________ 


Melanie Kirkby, Treasurer 
Certifies that unless otherwise provided for in this report the funds are contained within the approved Budgets and 
that the financial transactions are in compliance with Council’s own policies and guidelines and the Municipal Act 
and regulations. 


___________________________________ 
Shellee Fournier, CAO 







Town of Gananoque


Capital Projects Pending


As at June 11, 2018 


Total 2018 


Budget


Total Spent $ Project Name Anticipated


Completion


Comments


3,208,000$       695,558.80$       Town Hall Addition and 


Renovation


Aug-18 Construction progressing well.


52,441.14$          
Archaeology Stage 3


Aug-18 Status Quo.  No further investigation 


required at this time.


20,000$            -$                      
Official Plan


Dec-18 In house preparation underway.


18,500$            21,318.74$          
Website Upgrade


Mar-18 Most upgrades are complete, reviewing 


pages for content continuity.  


15,000$            10,146.78$          
Fire Training Facility


Sep-18 ongoing through out the year


25,000$            25,440.02$          
Police - Tahoe Buyout


Jan-18 complete


10,000$            4,901.14$            
Police - Soft Body Armour


ongoing through out the year


10,000$            6,451.54$            Police - Computer 


Purchases


complete


30,000$            -$                       GPS Fleet Tracking 


Equipment  


Summer 2018 Waiting on delivery of Tandem Plow 


Truck before issuing tender


15,000$            -$                      
 Public Works Yard Gates 


Summer 2018 Receiving quotes


165,000$          747.94$               Queen Street Drainage Fall 2018 Topographic Survey completed. Finalizing 


design.


500,000$          5,252.76$             Asphalt/Concrete/             


Paving/ Milling (ACPM) 


Summer 2018 Work has commenced week of June 12, 


2018


60,000$            -$                      
 Blacksnapper Bridge 


Summer / Fall 


2018


Finalizing scope of work


236,844$          3,174.39$            
 Hudson Bridge Modular  


Dec. 31, 2019 Finalizing Request for Proposal document. 


75,000$            -$                       One Ton Crew Cab Pick up 


Truck 


Summer 2018 Gan Chev awarded contract. Truck has 


been ordered.


120,000$          -$                       10 ton Tandem Sander,  


includes plow, wing and 


sander 


Fall 2018 Chassis has been delivered to Gincor 


Kingston for installation of sander, plow, 


wing etc.







Town of Gananoque


Capital Projects Pending


As at June 11, 2018 


2,019,802$       64,388.51$          
 Maple and Osborne 


Engineering/Recon 


Fall 2018 Contract awarded to Bricaza Corporation. 


Work to commence early July.


118,000$          -$                      


West End Subdivision


2019 Topographic Survey to be completed this 


fall. Design and tender over winter.


22,000$            -$                      


Parking Metres


Awaiting arrival of machines for 


installation.  Signage being revamped


248,410$          3,536.66$             Lagoon Structure 


Replacement 


Fall 2018 Design complete - tender to follow - work 


being done during low flow


375,160$          5,668.48$            
 Pumping Station 2 


Fall 2018 Design complete - tender to follow - work 


being done during low flow


372,885$          -$                      
 Lagoon Cleaning 


Fall 2018 RFP closed May 15, 2018 - working with 


finalist on scope clarification 


36,730$            -$                      
 Pumping station # 3 - 


Odour Control 


Fall 2018 Class and division rating of wetwell 


requires an enclosed unit or an outside 


unit.  Further investigation required


2,167,530$       10,640.74$          
East End Pumping Station


ongoing In line inspection approved - smart ball 


inspection completed June 13/18


80,000$            10,379.82$          
Metre Replacement


ongoing Depleting 2017 stock 


1,797,865$       10,640.74$          
Force Main Upgrade


ongoing In line inspection approved - smart ball 


inspection completed June 13/18


19,365$            825.54$               
Corrosion Control


ongoing Ongoing as lead services are encountered


52,330$            -$                      
Flow Metres


Fall 2018 Developing proposal for installation


25,000$            4,410.00$            


Recreation Master Plan


Fall 2018 Contract has been approved by Council 


and the job was awarded by TLTI. Work 


has started and project is to be 


completed before December.


88,000$            -$                      
Arena- Mechanical 


Upgrades


Fall 2018 Contract has been approved by council 


and awarded. Work to be completed 


before September.


3,950$               1,717.55$            
Arena - Paint Perimeter 


Walls of Ice Surface


Fall 2018 Started project on May 7. 65% complete - 


project to be completed before 


September.


12,450$            -$                      
Arena- Mechanical 


Upgrades


Fall 2018 RFQ sent out for controller job and 


currently pricing hot water boiler 


replacement. 







Town of Gananoque


Capital Projects Pending


As at June 11, 2018 


5,000$               4,949.21$            


Splashpad Washroom Floor


Spring 2018 Project is complete.


749,830$          27,337.95$          


Bay Road/ Boat Launch 


Project


Fall 2018 Awaiting review period (May 18, 2018 to 


June 19, 2018) If no objections, 


construction will commence this fall.


11,000$            -$                      
Marina - SeaDoo Ramp


Spring 2018 Contract awarded. Work to begin in July.


20,000$            -$                      Marina -Dock Condition 


Study


Fall 2018 Designing scope.


20,000$            -$                      
Marina - CCTV


summer 2018 Finalized scope. Waiting on three quote 


submissions. 


88,100$            -$                      St. Lawrence Street Hydro 


Lines


Spring 2018 Transformers on order


20,000$            -$                      
ACHM repairs


Fall of 2018


145,150$          92,308.58$          
Library - HVAC, Paint/Floor, 


Accessible & Eavestroughes


Remaining works for accessibility and 


eavestroughes to be done.  Final grant 


submission to province complete.


1,062,237.03$    
1,062,237.03$    


-$                    
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COW Report – FIN-2018-26 
 


COW Date: June 19, 2018          ☐      IN CAMERA 


Subject:  2017 Management Letter 


Author:  Melanie Kirkby, Treasurer        ☒     OPEN SESSION 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE RECEIVE THE 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MANAGEMENT 
LETTER, AS PRESENTED BY HOWARD ALLAN, OF ALLAN AND PARTNERS LLP, AND; AS PRESENTED IN 
COW REPORT FIN-2018-26. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN COMMENTS: 
Sector 3 – Financial Sustainability – Action Item L – Develop Financial Controllership 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the Tuesday, June 19, 2018, Committee of the Whole meeting, Howard Allan of Allan and 
Partners LLP, will appear to present the audited 2017 Financial Statements and the attached 
2017 Management Letter.  This is an annual letter that notes items encountered during the 
audit and outlines areas for future improvement. 
 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: 
Long Term Financial Plan 
Recommendation by Auditor that a long-term capital and financial plan be completed and 
reviewed annually.   
 
Staff have sent the applicable data to the auditors, which will be the content of the Long Term 
Financial Plan. Staff will be meeting this fall with the Auditors to prepare a draft of the Long 
Term Financial Plan that will be presented to Council in late 2018 or early 2019. Upon 
Completion, the Asset Management Plan will serve as the basis for the annual capital budget 
and the Long Term Financial Plan will serve as basis for annual operating budgets, particularly 
projections of necessary revenue levels. 
 
The Auditor has recommended that the Asset Management Policy be updated to refresh 
treatment of betterments and to regulate useful lifespans used in amortization. The TCA policy 
will be reviewed in 2018. 
 
The Auditor has recommended that an annual inventory of capital assets be completed. Staff 
have undertaken this exercise in 2018 and will continue to review inventory annually.   
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APPLICABLE POLICY/LEGISLATION: 
Municipal Act 2001, Part VI, section 296, Auditor 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:   
None. 
 
CONSULTATIONS:  
Finance Working Group. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
2017 Management Letter. 


 


A
P


P
R


O
V


A
L 


               


 


___________________________________ 


Melanie Kirkby, Treasurer 
Certifies that unless otherwise provided for in this report the funds are contained within the approved Budgets and 
that the financial transactions are in compliance with Council’s own policies and guidelines and the Municipal Act 
and regulations. 


 
___________________________________ 
Shellee Fournier, CAO 
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COW Report – RECM-2018-010 
 


COW Date:  June 19, 2018       ☐         IN CAMERA 


Subject:  Canada 150 Rink - Application 


Author:  Terry Gilmer, Manager of Parks and Recreation  ☒        OPEN SESSION 


 
RECOMMENDATION:   
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF GANANOQUE PASS BY-LAW NO. 2018-060, BEING A BY-LAW TO AUTHORIZE THE 
MAYOR AND CLERK TO SIGN THE CANADA 150 RINK DONATION APPLICATION, AS PRESENTED IN 
COW REPORT RECM-2018-10. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN COMMENTS: 
Sector #4 – Quality of Life - Strategic Initiative #1 – To ensure the recreation needs of our community 
are being met in a fiscally responsible manner.   
 
Sector #1 – Economic Prosperity - Strategic Initiative #4 – Develop and promote Gananoque as a 
four-season tourist destination that supports the local economy. 
 
BACKGROUND  
The Canada 150 Rink on Parliament Hill project was developed by the Department of Canadian 
Heritage and the Ottawa International Hockey Festival (OIHF) in order to provide a uniquely 
Canadian experience to close out the Canada 150 celebration year. As a legacy project from the 
Canada 150 celebrations, the OIHF will donate the Canada 150 Rink materials and funding 
described below to a municipality, First Nation, registered charitable organization, or not-for-
profit corporation who is selected after submitting an Application Form for use of the donated 
Canada 150 Rink materials and funding in an eligible community rink project.  
 
Donation Inclusions:  
Materials  
• 85’ x 200’ rink boards (can be used for indoor rink/arena or outdoor rink construction)  
• Plexiglas and protective netting above the plexiglass  
• Players’ benches  
• Two (2) hockey nets  
• Scoreboard system  
 
 
 







Report To Council                 June 19, 2018 
COW Report – RECM-2018-010 
         
 


 


Page 2 of 5 


Funding:  
In addition to the donation of the Canada 150 Rink materials outlined above, the OIHF will also 
provide up to $150,000 in funding to the successful applicant to help offset the costs of 
installation and site preparation. The successful applicant will be required to provide the OIHF 
with appropriate invoices and statements demonstrating costs for which it seeks 
funding/reimbursement. The OIHF will also pay for transportation costs associated with the 
delivery of the above listed Canada 150 Rink materials to the successful applicant, within 200 
km of the City of Ottawa. 
 
Exclusions:  
For greater certainty, any other components of the Canada 150 Rink not listed above including, 
but not limited to, the refrigeration system, are excluded from the Donation and will not be 
provided to the successful applicant for use in its community rink project. Any additional costs 
associated with the successful applicant’s community rink project including but not limited to 
any land acquisition, construction, site preparation and installation costs in excess of the 
funding to be provided by the OIHF (as described above) as well as storage costs, are the sole 
responsibility of the successful applicant. 
 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION: 
Staff are bringing this report forward for discussion now, before the completion of the Recreation 
Master Plan, because the deadline to apply is July 13, 2018. The selection process is scheduled to be 
completed on or about August 10, 2018.  
 
This project has been gaining a lot of momentum from key people/groups in the community who 
wish to see an outdoor rink built in Gananoque that honours the late Gord Brown, by providing more 
access to unstructured activities and assisting with winter tourism. 
 
Jeff Brown, Kathrine Christensen, John Keilty, Amy Kirkland and Tom Russell have formed a 
committee to help raise support/funds necessary to construct a refrigerated outdoor ice skating 
facility in memory of Gord.  It is estimated that $1,970,000 will be required to complete the 
project in its entirety and it is understood that it may be more practical to consider the initiative 
in phases. Phase 1 would be the creation of an outdoor rink that has all the hookups, so that it 
can be connected to a refrigeration system in phase 2 (plus change rooms)  and then a roof 
added in phase 3.  There is good reason to believe that enough support has been secured 
already to launch phase one before June of 2019, should the Canada 150 rink be donated to the 
Town. 
 
Current fundraising has reached approximately $140,000 from the Thousand Islands 
Accommodation Partners ($100,000) and from “Go Fund Me” contributions ($40,000).  There 
have also been several soft commitments made by multiple contractors who have expressed an 
interest in donating a significant amount of services, thereby dramatically reducing the overall 
project cost.  Both the Town of Gananoque and The Township of Leeds & The Thousand Islands 
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have designated staff to investigate the project’s potential and assist in the stages of delivery.   
It is reasonable to anticipate a contribution from both municipalities (although no formal 
request has yet to be made) for the Phase 3 of this project.  It is further expected that the 1000 
Islands CDC will contribute approximately $50,000, but the amount has yet to be determined.  
 
Options: 
1. Direct staff to proceed with developing the Canada 150 application and authorize the Mayor 


and Clerk to sign the Application.  
a. Approving a location close to the Lou Jeffries Recreation Centre (Appendix B). 
b. Approving phase one of this project, subject to successful grant application and necessary 


fundraising efforts for: 
i. Boards 
ii. Lights 
iii. Playing Surface 
iv. Site Plans 


c. Committing $0 capital at this time and to an operating cost of between $2,500 and $5,000 
(estimated) for annual maintenance.  
 


2. Do not move forward with the Canada 150 Application. 
 
Skating is a great way to exercise and get active during the winter months. Having an outdoor rink 
facility (refrigerated/not refrigerated) would not only help with the outdoor ice building process and 
extend the season; it would also provide residents with a safe place to play ball hockey, basketball, 
pickleball, etc. during the warmer months. Building an outdoor rink would help the community 
provide more affordable and unstructured recreational play opportunities for everyone.  
 
APPLICABLE POLICY/LEGISLATION: 
N/A. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:   
 


Capital Expenses Estimate **Donations Total Cost 


Boards  $    200,000.00   $    200,000.00   $                 -    


Lights  $      20,000.00   $      10,000.00   $      10,000.00  


*Cement Pad  $    600,000.00   $    300,000.00   $    300,000.00  


Site Plans  $      50,000.00   $      20,000.00   $      30,000.00  


Phase 1  $          870,000.00   $          530,000.00   $          340,000.00  


Refrigeration  $    500,000.00   $      50,000.00   $    450,000.00  


Change Rooms  $    100,000.00   $      50,000.00   $      50,000.00  


Phase 2  $          600,000.00   $          100,000.00   $          500,000.00  


Roof  $    500,000.00     $    500,000.00  


Phase 3  $          500,000.00   $                        -     $          500,000.00  


Total  $  1,970,000.00   $    630,000.00   $  1,340,000.00  
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Funding Estimate 


CDC  $      50,000.00  


TIAP  $    100,000.00  


Go Fund Me  $      40,000.00  


OIHF  $    150,000.00  


Phase 1  $    340,000.00  


Trillium Grant  $    150,000.00  


United Way Events  $    150,000.00  


Private Donations  $    200,000.00  


Phase 2  $    500,000.00  


Gananoque  $    250,000.00  


TLTI  $    250,000.00  


Phase 3  $    500,000.00  


Total  $  1,340,000.00  


 


* Cement Pad - $600k - standard NHL 85’x200’ size outdoor rink: 


 Refrigeration headers, rink cold floor pipe, chairs, U Bends, clamps, misc. material and        
supplies including all labour: $150K 


 Rebar and wire mesh: $40K 


 Concrete finishing: $50K (includes wind protection) 


 Supply of concrete: $100k 


 Supply of insulation and slip-sheet: $60K 


 Levelling of ground and sub-grade: $80K 


 Additional contractor fees: $120K 
 
Note. There is a potential cost savings if an asphalt base is used. Staff are currently investigating a 
refrigeration system that would allow staff to roll out pipes on top of the asphalt in the Fall and store 
it in the Spring. More investigation is needed into the quality of the system.  
 
**Donations  
These are soft commitments made by contractors, with the exception of the possible Canada 150 
boards/glass donation, that would reduce the overall cost of the project once confirmed. 
 
Maintenance Costs – Maintenance costs for phase one would be anticipated to be in order of the 
costs currently associated with the maintenance of our other outdoor rink, but likely higher given the 
nature and proposed uses. An estimate of between $2,500 and $5,000 is recommended to be used 
for planning purposes.  
 


CONSULTATIONS:  


Katherine Christensen, Executive Director, Tourism 1000 Islands 
Tom Russell, Executive Director, 1000 Islands Community Development Corporation 
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ATTACHMENTS:  
Appendix A – Canada 150 Rink Donation Application 
Appendix B – Site Suggestions for the Outdoor Rink 
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___________________________________ 
Terry Gilmer,  Manager of Parks and Recreation 
  
___________________________________ 
Melanie Kirkby, Treasurer 


Certifies that unless otherwise provided for in this report the funds are contained within the approved Budgets 
and that the financial transactions are in compliance with Council’s own policies and guidelines and the Municipal 
Act and regulations. 


 
___________________________________ 
Shellee Fournier, CAO 
 







Page 1 of 5 
 


OTTAWA INTERNATIONAL HOCKEY FESTIVAL 


CANADA 150 RINK DONATION APPLICATION GUIDELINES 
 
RINK DONATION INFORMATION 
 
The Canada 150 Rink on Parliament Hill project was developed by the Department of Canadian Heritage 
and the Ottawa International Hockey Festival (OIHF) in order to provide a uniquely Canadian experience 
to close out the Canada 150 celebration year. Open from Dec. 7, 2017 to Feb. 25, 2018, the Canada 150 
Rink welcomed more than 150,000 skaters to Parliament Hill through public skating sessions, minor 
hockey clinics and games, ringette, speed skating, broomball and other ice sport demonstrations. 
 
As a legacy project from the Canada 150 celebrations, the OIHF will donate the Canada 150 Rink 
materials and funding described below (listed under ‘Inclusions’) to a municipality, First Nation, 
registered charitable organization, or not-for-profit corporation who is selected after submitting an 
Application Form (described below) for use of the donated Canada 150 Rink materials and funding in an 
eligible community rink project.   
 
Donation Inclusions: 
 
Materials 
 


• 85’ x 200’ rinkboards (which can be used for an indoor rink/arena or outdoor rink construction)  
• plexiglass  
• protective netting above the plexiglass  
• players’ benches  
• two (2) hockey nets  
• scoreboard system     


 
Funding 
 
In addition to the donation of the Canada 150 Rink materials outlined above, the OIHF will also provide 
up to $150,000.00 in funding to the successful applicant to help offset the costs of installation and site 
preparation.  The successful applicant will be required to provide the OIHF with appropriate invoices and 
statements demonstrating costs for which it seeks funding/reimbursement.  The OIHF will also pay for 
transportation costs associated with the delivery of the above listed Canada 150 Rink materials to the 
successful applicant, within 200 km of the City of Ottawa.  
  
(the Materials and Funding inclusions described above to be collectively referred to as the “Donation”) 
 
Exclusions: 
 
For greater certainty, any other components of the Canada 150 Rink not listed above including, but not 
limited to, the refrigeration system, are excluded from the Donation and will not be provided to the 
successful applicant for use in its community rink project.  Any additional costs associated with the 
successful applicant’s community rink project including but not limited to any land acquisition, 
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construction, site preparation and installation costs in excess of the funding to be provided by the OIHF 
(as described above) as well as storage costs, are the sole responsibility of the successful applicant.   
 


APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 


To be eligible to receive the Donation, an applicant, and its community rink project, must meet all of the 
following requirements:  


Applicant Requirements 


1. The applicant must be one of the following Canadian entities: a municipality, First Nation, a 
registered charitable organization, or a federally or provincially incorporated not-for-profit 
corporation. 


Community Rink Project Requirements 


2. The applicant must have an identified site located within eastern Ontario or western Quebec, 
within 200 km of the City of Ottawa for the construction or refurbishment of a 200’ x 85’ rink; 


3. The applicant must be able to outline construction timelines for its rink project.  Preference will 
be given to projects which can be completed in the summer/fall of 2018; 


4. The applicant must be able to present and describe its vision for the future of the Canada 150 
Rink; 


5. The applicant must be able to describe the budget and funding in place to support the rink 
project and its construction.  Preference will be given to projects that have matching funding 
commitments for construction and/or programming; 


6. The applicant must be able to list all partners and/or facilities involved with the proposed rink 
project, if applicable; 


7. The applicant must be able to demonstrate the community’s involvement with the rink project; 
8. The applicant must be able to explain the benefits the rink project will bring to its community; 
9. The applicant must be able to describe the programming that will be delivered at the rink site 


year-round; and 
10. The applicant must be able to disclose any anticipated risks associated with the rink project. 


 
At any point during or after the selection process, the OIHF reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to 
require proof, in form and substance satisfactory to the OIHF, that the applicant and its community 
project meet the eligibility requirements outlined above. 


APPLICATION SELECTION 


A selection committee appointed by the OIHF will select the successful applicant based on how well the 
applicant meets the requirements outlined under Application Requirements above.   


 
The selection process is scheduled to be completed on or about August 10, 2018 (the “Selection Date”).  
The OIHF reserves the right to reject any or all of the applications received or to accept any application 
at its sole discretion.     
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ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
By submitting an application, the applicant agrees that should its application be successful, the applicant 
will be required to execute an agreement with the OIHF in which the OIHF will transfer to the applicant, 
and the applicant will agree to accept, the Donation on an ‘as is’ basis.  The agreement will contain a 
standard indemnification and release of the OIHF, the Department of Canadian Heritage, and other 
partners involved in the Canada 150 Rink project, by the applicant as well as language disclaiming any 
warranties or assurances regarding the Donation. 
   
The applicant further agrees that should its application be successful, it will be required to ensure that 
its community rink, when constructed and operational, is recognized within the community as a Canada 
150 legacy project.  The successful applicant and the OIHF will agree upon an appropriate recognition 
package.   
 
Any personal information submitted and/or collected during the application and selection process will 
be kept confidential by OIHF unless otherwise required by law.  All uses of such personal information 
will be in accordance with the Canada 150 Rink’s Privacy Policy available at 
http://canada150rink.com/privacy-policy/. 


Questions relating to the Canada 150 Rink Donation Application should be directed to: 


Email: info@canada150rink.com    


 
APPLICATION SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS 
 
Applicants must complete the Application Form located below.  Application Forms may be completed in 
either English or French.  Fully completed Application Forms must be printed and submitted in hard copy 
by hand or mail/courier to: 
 
 Ottawa International Hockey Festival 
 Attention: Canada 150 Rink Donation 
 1000 Palladium Drive 
 Ottawa, Ontario 
 K2V 1A5 
    
The application period opens Thursday, June 7, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. EDT and closes Friday, July 13, 2018 at 
4:00 p.m. EDT.  Applications received after 4:00 p.m. EDT on Friday, July 13, 2018 will not be 
considered.  The OIHF reserves the right to amend the application period opening and closing dates in 
its sole discretion.  The OIHF, the Department of Canadian Heritage, and any partners or sponsors of the 
Canada 150 Rink project,  are not responsible for, and accept no liability whatsoever in relation to, any 
late, lost, misdirected, delayed, or incomplete Applications. 
 
  



http://canada150rink.com/privacy-policy/

mailto:info@canada150rink.com
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APPLICATION FORM 
 
Please complete the following information: 
 


1. NAME OF THE APPLICANT APPLYING FOR RINK (MUST BE A CANADIAN MUNICIPALITY, FIRST 
NATION, REGISTERED CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION OR NOT-FOR-PROFIT CORPORATION). 


  
2. CONTACT INFORMATION FOR APPLICANT: 


 
a. PRIMARY CONTACT NAME: 
b. PRIMARY CONTACT TITLE: 
c. PRIMARY CONTACT OFFICE PHONE: 
d. PRIMARY CONTACT MOBILE PHONE: 
e. PRIMARY CONTACT EMAIL: 
f. APPLICANT ADDRESS: 
g. APPLICANT WEBSITE: 


 
3. WHAT IS THE PROPOSED SITE LOCATION (CIVIC ADDRESS) FOR THE COMMUNITY RINK PROJECT?   


PLEASE CONFIRM THAT THE INSTALLATION OF THE CANADA 150 RINK IS A PERMITTED USE ON 
THE SITE.  PLEASE CONFIRM OWNERSHIP OF THE SITE.  


 
4. BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE VISION OF THE COMMUNITY RINK PROJECT THAT THE CANADA 150 RINK 


DONATION WILL BE PART OF. 
 


5. BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE BUDGET IN PLACE TO SUPPORT THE COMMUNITY RINK PROJECT AND ITS 
CONSTRUCTION AS DESCRIBED ABOVE. 


 
6. PLEASE OUTLINE CONSTRUCTION TIMELINES FOR YOUR COMMUNITY RINK PROJECT. 


 
7. ARE THERE ANY OTHER FACILITIES/PARTNERS CONNECTED WITH THE PROPOSED COMMUNITY 


RINK SITE/PROJECT? 
 


8. DESCRIBE ANY PLANNED PROGRAMMING THAT WILL BE DELIVERED AT THIS COMMUNITY RINK 
SITE YEAR-ROUND. 


 
9. DESCRIBE HOW THE COMMUNITY RINK WILL BENEFIT THE COMMUNITY? 


 
10.   DESCRIBE HOW THE COMMUNITY WILL RALLY AROUND THE COMMUNITY RINK PROJECT. 


 
11.   WHAT RISK, IF ANY, DO YOU ANTICIPATE WITH THIS COMMUNITY RINK PROJECT? 


 
12.   ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
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This Application Form is submitted in response to the OIHF’s request for Canada 150 Rink Donation 
Applications.  By submitting this Application, Applicant agrees to all of the terms and conditions 
outlined in the Canada 150 Rink Donation Application Guidelines.   


 


Name of Applicant: 


 


 


____________________________________ 


Signature of Authorized Representative 


Name:  
Title: 
 
I have authority to bind the Applicant 


  


 







Option A 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Option B 
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The Town invites and encourages people with disabilities to attend and voice their comments in relation 
to accessibility related reports.  For those who are unable to attend, the Town encourages the use of the 

Customer Feedback Form found on the Accessibility Page on the Town’s website. 
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11 DISCUSSION OF ADDITIONAL ITEMS 

12 NEXT REGULAR MEETING – July 3, 2018 

13 QUESTIONS FROM THE MEDIA 

14 ADJOURNMENT 

  




